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Name of issuer
Frame Media Inc.

Legal status of issuer

Form
C-Corporation

Jurisdiction of Incorporation/Organization
Delaware

Date of organization
June 04, 2019

Physical address of issuer
30 John Street, Brooklyn, NY 11201

Website of issuer
https://frame.media

Name of intermediary through which the offering will be conducted
SI Securities, LLC

CIK number of intermediary
0001603038

SEC file number of intermediary
008-69440

CRD number, if applicable, of intermediary
170937

Amount of compensation to be paid to the intermediary, whether as a dollar amount or a percentage of the offering
amount, or a good faith estimate if the exact amount is not available at the time of the filing, for conducting the
offering, including the amount of referral and any other fees associated with the offering

7.5% of the amount raised



Any other direct or indirect interest in the issuer held by the intermediary, or any arrangement for the intermediary
to acquire such an interest
SI Securities will receive equity compensation equal to 5% of the number of securities sold.

Type of security offered
Crowd Note

Target number of Securities to be offered
N/A

Price (or method for determining price)
Determined in conjunction with a broker-dealer.

Target offering amount
$25,000

Oversubscriptions accepted:
Yes
O No

Oversubscriptions will be allocated:
O Pro-rata basis

First-come, first-served basis

O Other:

Maximum offering amount (if different from target offering amount)
$1,000,000

Deadline to reach the target offering amount
May 1, 2020

NOTE: If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering amount at the
offering deadline, no Securities will be sold in the offering, investment commitments will be cancelled and
committed funds will be returned.

Current number of employees
2



Most recent fiscal year-end Prior fiscal year-end
Total Assets $87,831 N/A
Cash & Cash Equivalents $83,691 N/A
Accounts Receivable N/A N/A
Short-term Debt $19,797 N/A
Long-term Debt N/A N/A
Revenues/Sales $261 N/A
Cost of Goods Sold $82,227 N/A
Taxes Paid N/A N/A
Net Income ($81,966) N/A

The jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the Securities:

Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, District Of Columbia, Florida,
Georgia, Guam, Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New
Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Puerto Rico,
Rhode Island, South Carolina, South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virgin Islands, U.S., Virginia,
Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin, Wyoming, American Samoa, and Northern Mariana Islands
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EXHIBIT A
OFFERING MEMORANDUM PART II OF OFFERING STATEMENT
(EXHIBIT A TO FORM C)
March 2, 2020

Frame Media Inc.

Up to $1,000,000 of Crowd Notes

nn

Frame Media Inc. (“Frame”, the "Company," "we," "us", or "our"), is offering up to $1,000,000 worth of Crowd Notes
of the Company (the "Securities"). Purchasers of Securities are sometimes referred to herein as "Purchasers". The
minimum target offering is $25,000 (the "Target Amount"). This Offering is being conducted on a best efforts basis
and the Company must reach its Target Amount of $25,000 by May 1, 2020. The Company is making concurrent
offerings under both Regulation CF (the “Offering”) and Regulation D (the "Combined Offerings"). Unless the
Company raises at least the Target Amount of $25,000 under the Regulation CF Offering and a total of $150,000
under the Combined Offerings (the "Closing Amount") by May 1, 2020, no Securities will be sold in this Offering,
investment commitments will be cancelled, and committed funds will be returned. Investors who completed the
subscription process by April 24, 2020 will be permitted to increase their subscription amount at any time on or before
May 1, 2020 upon Company consent. For the avoidance of doubt, no initial subscriptions from new investors will be
accepted after April 24, 2020. The Company will accept oversubscriptions in excess of the Target Amount for the
Offering up to $1,000,000 (the "Maximum Amount") on a first come, first served basis. If the Company reaches its
Closing Amount prior to May 1, 2020, the Company may conduct the first of multiple closings, provided that the
Offering has been posted for 21 days and that investors who have committed funds will be provided notice five
business days prior to the close. The minimum amount of Securities that can be purchased is $1,000 per Purchaser
(which may be waived by the Company, in its sole and absolute discretion). The offer made hereby is subject to
modification, prior sale and withdrawal at any time.

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this Offering unless you can
afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of
the Offering, including the merits and risks involved. These Securities have not been recommended or approved
by any federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not
passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) does not pass upon the merits of any Securities
offered or the terms of the Offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any Offering
document or literature.

These Securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the SEC has not made an
independent determination that these Securities are exempt from registration.

This disclosure document contains forward-looking statements and information relating to, among other
things, the Company, its business plan and strategy, and its industry. These forward-looking statements are
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based on the beliefs of, assumptions made by, and information currently available to the Company’s
management. When used in this disclosure document and the Company Offering materials, the words
"estimate", "project"”, "believe', "anticipate', "intend", "expect", and similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. These statements reflect management’s current views with respect to
future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause the Company’s action results to differ
materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements. Investors are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after such state or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.

The Company has certified that all of the following statements are TRUE for the Company in connection with this
Offering:

(1) Is organized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or territory of the United States or the District of
Columbia;

(2) Is not subject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to section 13 or section 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d));

(3) Is not an investment company, as defined in section 3 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C.
80a-3), or excluded from the definition of investment company by section 3(b) or section 3(c) of that Act (15
U.S.C. 80a-3(b) or 80a-3(c));

(4) Is not ineligible to offer or sell securities in reliance on section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the
“1933 Act”) (15 U.S.C. 77d(a)(6)) as a result of a disqualification as specified in § 227.503(a);

(5) Has filed with the SEC and provided to investors, to the extent required, any ongoing annual reports required
by law during the two years immediately preceding the filing of this Form C; and

(6) Has a specific business plan, which is not to engage in a merger or acquisition with an unidentified company
or companies.

Ongoing Reporting
The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the report on its website no later than
April 30, 2021.

Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at https:/frame.media/investors.

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:

(1) the Company is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) the Company has filed at least three annual reports pursuant to Regulation CF and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) the Company has filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation CF and has fewer than 300 holders
of record;

(4) the Company or another party repurchases all of the Securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the
1933 Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable
securities; or

(5) the Company liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Neither the Company nor any of its predecessors (if any) previously failed to comply with the ongoing reporting
requirement of Regulation CF.

Updates
Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: seedinvest.com/frame

About this Form C

You should rely only on the information contained in this Form C. We have not authorized anyone to provide you
with information different from that contained in this Form C. We are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, the
Securities only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are permitted. You should assume that the information contained
in this Form C is accurate only as of the date of this Form C, regardless of the time of delivery of this Form C or of
any sale of Securities. Our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects may have changed since
that date.

Statements contained herein as to the content of any agreements or other documents are summaries and, therefore, are
necessarily selective and incomplete and are qualified in their entirety by the actual agreements or other documents.
The Company will provide the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from the Company’s management

6



concerning terms and conditions of the Offering, the Company or any other relevant matters, and any additional
reasonable information to any prospective Purchaser prior to the consummation of the sale of the Securities.

This Form C does not purport to contain all of the information that may be required to evaluate the Offering and any
recipient of this Form C should conduct independent analysis. The statements of the Company contained herein are
based on information believed to be reliable. No warranty can be made as to the accuracy of such information or that
circumstances have not changed since the date of this Form C. The Company does not expect to update or otherwise
revise this Form C or other materials supplied herewith. The delivery of this Form C at any time does not imply that
the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this Form C. This Form C is
submitted in connection with the Offering described herein and may not be reproduced or used for any other purpose.

SUMMARY

The Business

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by more detailed information that may appear elsewhere in this
Form C and the Exhibits hereto. Each prospective Purchaser is urged to read this Form C and the Exhibits hereto in
their entirety.

Frame Media Inc. is a Delaware C-Corporation, formed on June 04, 2019.

The Company is located at 30 John Street, Brooklyn, NY 11201.

The Company’s website is https://frame.media.

A description of our products as well as our services, process, and business plan can be found on the Company’s

profile page on the SI Securities, LLC (“SeedInvest”) website under seedinvest.com/frame and is attached as Exhibit
C to the Form C of which this Offering Memorandum forms a part.

The Offering
Minimum amount of Crowd Note being offered $25,000
Maximum amount of Crowd Note $1,000,000
Purchase price per Securit Determined in conjunction with a broker-dealer. Not
P P Y Applicable
Minimum investment amount per investor $1,000
Offering deadline May 1, 2020
Uselof proceeds See the description of the use of proceeds on pages 11
and 12 hereof.
Voting Rights See the description of the voting rights on pages 10. 12
and 15.
RISK FACTORS

The SEC requires the Company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its financial condition. The
Company is still subject to all the same risks that all companies in its business, and all companies in the economy,
are exposed. These include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events, and technological
developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking). Additionally, early-stage companies are
inherently more risky than more developed companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks
when deciding whether to invest.

Risks Related to the Company’s Business and Industry

The development and commercialization of the Company’s products and services are competitive. 1t faces
competition with respect to any products and services that it may seek to develop or commercialize in the future. Its
competitors include major companies worldwide. The news media market is an emerging industry where new
competitors are entering the market frequently. Many of the Company’s competitors have significantly greater
financial, technical and human resources and may have superior expertise in research and development and
marketing approved services and thus may be better equipped than the Company to develop and commercialize
services. These competitors also compete with the Company in recruiting and retaining qualified personnel and



acquiring technologies. Smaller or early stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly
through collaborative arrangements with large and established companies. Accordingly, the Company’s competitors
may commercialize products more rapidly or effectively than the Company is able to, which would adversely affect
its competitive position, the likelihood that its services will achieve initial market acceptance and its ability to
generate meaningful additional revenues from its products and services.

The Company’s expenses will significantly increase as they seek to execute their current business model.
Although the Company estimates that it has enough runway until end of year, they will be ramping up cash burn to
promote revenue growth, further develop R&D, and fund other Company operations after the raise. Doing so could
require significant effort and expense or may not be feasible.

The Company projects aggressive growth in 2020. If these assumptions are wrong and the projections regarding
market penetration are too aggressive, then the financial forecast may overstate the Company's overall viability. In
addition, the forward-looking statements are only predictions. The Company has based these forward-looking
statements largely on its current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that it believes
may affect its business, financial condition and results of operations. Forward-looking statements involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that may cause actual results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied
by the forward-looking statements.

The Company may face challenges maintaining, promoting, and growing its brand through marketing and
communications strategies. It may prove difficult for the Company to dramatically increase the number of
customers that it serves or to establish itself as a well-known brand in the competitive news media space.
Additionally, the product may be in a market where customers will not have brand loyalty.

The Company must correctly predict, identify, and interpret changes in consumer preferences and demand, offer
new products to meet those changes, and respond to competitive innovation. Consumer preferences for the
Company's products change continually. Its success depends on its ability to predict, identify, and interpret the tastes
and habits of consumers and to offer products that appeal to consumer preferences. If the Company does not offer
products that appeal to consumers, its sales and market share will decrease. It must distinguish between short-term
fads, mid-term trends, and long-term changes in consumer preferences. If the Company does not accurately predict
which shifts in consumer preferences will be long-term, or if it fails to introduce new and improved products to
satisfy those preferences, its sales could decline. In addition, because of its varied customer base, it must offer an
array of products that satisfy the broad spectrum of consumer preferences. If the Company fails to expand its
product offerings successfully across product categories, or if it does not rapidly develop products in faster growing
and more profitable categories, demand for its products could decrease, which could materially and adversely affect
its product sales, financial condition, and results of operations.

In addition, achieving growth depends on its successful development, introduction, and marketing of innovative new
products and line extensions. Successful innovation depends on its ability to correctly anticipate customer and
consumer acceptance, to obtain, protect and maintain necessary intellectual property rights, and to avoid infringing
the intellectual property rights of others and failure to do so could compromise its competitive position and
adversely impact its business

Quality management plays an essential role in determining and meeting customer requirements, preventing
defects, improving the Company’s products and services, and maintaining the integrity of the data that supports
the safety and efficacy of its products. The Company's future success depends on their ability to maintain and
continuously improve their quality management program. An inability to address a quality or safety issue in an
effective and timely manner may also cause negative publicity, a loss of customer confidence in the Company or the
Company's current or future products, which may result in the loss of sales and difficulty in successfully launching
new products. In addition, a successful claim brought against the Company in excess of available insurance or not



covered by indemnification agreements, or any claim that results in significant adverse publicity against the
Company could have an adverse effect on their business and their reputation.

In general, demand for the Company's products and services is highly correlated with general economic
conditions. A substantial portion of their revenue is derived from discretionary spending by individuals, which
typically falls during times of economic instability. Declines in economic conditions in the U.S. or in other countries
in which they operate may adversely impact their consolidated financial results. Because such declines in demand
are difficult to predict, the Company or the industry may have increased excess capacity as a result. An increase in
excess capacity may result in declines in prices for their products and services.

The Company may face difficulties in obtaining capital. The Company may have difficulty raising needed capital
in the future as a result of, among other factors, its lack of revenues from sales, as well as the inherent business risks
associated with the Company and present and future market conditions. The business currently does not generate
any sales and future sources of revenue may not be sufficient to meet its future capital requirements. The Company
will require additional funds to execute its business strategy and conduct operations. If adequate funds are
unavailable, the Company may be required to delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of its product
launches or marketing efforts, any of which may materially harm its business, financial condition and results of
operations

The Company's technology has a limited history and may perform below expectations. The Company uses
technology that has not been previously implemented on customer projects, and it may experience technological
problems that it is unable to foresee. If the implementation of its proprietary technology is unsuccessful, it could
negatively impact the successful operation of projects using its systems and may result in additional payments,
deductions or defaults under its agreements. In addition, there is a lack of long-term reliability data for its
proprietary system. Actual long-term performance of these projects may fall short of expectations.

The Company’s Board does not keep meeting minutes from its board meetings. Though the Company is a
Delaware Corporation and Delaware does not legally require its corporations to record and retain meeting minutes,
the practice of keeping board minutes is critical to maintaining good corporate governance. Minutes of meetings
provide a record of corporate actions, including director and officer appointments and board consents for issuances,
and can be helpful in the event of an audit or lawsuit. These recordkeeping practices can also help to reduce the risk
of potential liability due to failure to observe corporate formalities, and the failure to do so could negatively impact
certain processes, including but not limited to the due diligence process with potential investors or acquirers. There
is no guarantee that the Company’s board will begin keeping board meeting minutes.

The Company does not have formal advisor agreements in place with listed advisors. Advisor agreements typically
provide the expectation of the engagement, services, compensation, and other miscellaneous duties and rights of the
Company and advisor. These individuals may not be compensated for their expertise and advice. There is no
guarantee that advisor agreements will be entered into.

The reviewing CPA has included a “going concern” note in the reviewed financials. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern, which
contemplates the recoverability of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.The
Company has incurred losses from inception of $81,966, and has not launched principal operations which, among
other factors, raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern is dependent upon management's plans to raise additional capital from the
issuance of debt or the sale of stock, its ability to commence profitable sales of its flagship product, and its ability to
generate positive operational cash flow. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that
might be required should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

The Company has engaged in related party transactions. During the period ended September 30, 2019, the Company
advanced funds to a shareholder of the Company. Amounts owed to the Company as of September 30, 2019 are non-
interest bearing and have no maturity date. At September 30, 2019 the outstanding amount owed to the Company is
$1,451.



The Company has not prepared any audited financial statements. Therefore, investors have no audited financial
information regarding the Company’s capitalization or assets or liabilities on which to make investment decisions. If
investors feel the information provided is insufficient, then they should not invest in the Company.

The Company is subject to many U.S. federal and state laws and regulations, including those related to privacy,
rights of publicity, and law enforcement. These laws and regulations are constantly evolving and may be
interpreted, applied, created, or amended, in a manner that could harm their business. The technology and use of the
technology in the Company's product may not be legislated, and it is uncertain whether different states will legislate
around this technology, and, if they do, how they will do so. Violating existing or future regulatory orders or consent
decrees could subject the Company to substantial monetary fines and other penalties that could negatively affect
their financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to the Securities

The Crowd Notes will not be freely tradable until one year from the initial purchase date. Although the Crowd
Notes may be tradable under federal securities law, state securities regulations may apply and each Purchaser
should consult with his or her attorney. You should be aware of the long-term nature of this investment. There is not
now, and likely will not be, a public market for the Crowd Notes. Because the Crowd Notes have not been registered
under the 1933 Act or under the securities laws of any state or non-United States jurisdiction, the Crowd Notes have
transfer restrictions under Rule 501 of Regulation CF. It is not currently contemplated that registration under the 1933
Act or other securities laws will be effected. Limitations on the transfer of the Crowd Notes may also adversely affect
the price that you might be able to obtain for the Crowd Notes in a private sale. Purchasers should be aware of the
long-term nature of their investment in the Company. Each Purchaser in this Offering will be required to represent
that it is purchasing the Securities for its own account, for investment purposes, and not with a view to resale or
distribute thereof.

We are selling convertible notes that will convert into shares or result in payment in limited circumstances. These
notes only convert or result in payment in limited circumstances. If the Crowd Notes reach their maturity date,
investors (by a decision of the Crowd Note holders holding a majority of the principal amount of the outstanding
Crowd Notes) will either (a) receive payment equal to the total of their purchase price plus outstanding accrued
interest, or (b) convert the Crowd Notes into shares of the Company’s most senior class of preferred stock, and if no
preferred stock has been issued, then shares of Company’s common stock. If there is a merger, buyout or other
corporate transaction that occurs before a qualified equity financing, investors will receive a payment of the greater
of their purchase price plus accrued unpaid interest or the amount of preferred shares they would have been able to
purchase using the valuation cap. If there is a qualified equity financing (an initial public offering registered under the
1933 Act or a financing using preferred shares), the notes will convert into a yet to-be-determined class of preferred
stock. If the notes convert because they have reached their maturity date, the notes will convert based on a $5,000,000
valuation cap. If the notes convert due to a qualified equity financing, the notes will convert at a discount of 20%, or
based on a $5,000,000 valuation cap. This means that investors would be rewarded for taking on early risk compared
to later investors. Outside investors at the time of conversion, if any, might value the Company at an amount well
below the $5,000,000 valuation cap, so you should not view the $5,000,000 as being an indication of the Company’s
value.

We have not assessed the tax implications of using the Crowd Note. The Crowd Note is a type of debt security. As
such, there has been inconsistent treatment under state and federal tax law as to whether securities like the Crowd
Note can be considered a debt of the Company, or the issuance of equity. Investors should consult their tax advisers.

The Crowd Note contains dispute resolution provisions which limit your ability to bring class action lawsuits or
seek remedy on a class basis. By purchasing a Crowd Note this Offering, you agree to be bound by the dispute
resolution provisions found in Section 6 of the Crowd Note. Those provisions apply to claims regarding this Offering,
the Crowd Notes, and possibly the securities into which the Crowd Note are convertible. Under those provisions,
disputes under the Crowd Note will be resolved in arbitration conducted in Delaware. Further, those provisions may
limit your ability to bring class action lawsuits or similarly seek remedy on a class basis.

You may have limited rights. The Company may not have yet authorized preferred stock, and there is no way to know
what voting rights those securities will have in the future. In addition, as an investor in the Regulation CF offering,
you will be considered a Non-Major Investor (as defined below) under the terms of the notes offered, and therefore,
you have more limited information rights.
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A majority of the Company is owned by a small number of owners. Prior to the Offering, the Company’s current
owners of 20% or more of the Company’s outstanding voting securities beneficially own up to 68% of the Company’s
voting securities. Subject to any fiduciary duties owed to other owners or investors under Delaware law, these owners
may be able to exercise significant influence over matters requiring owner approval, including the election of directors
or managers and approval of significant Company transactions, and will have significant control over the Company’s
management and policies. Some of these persons may have interests that are different from yours. For example, these
owners may support proposals and actions with which you may disagree. The concentration of ownership could delay
or prevent a change in control of the Company or otherwise discourage a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain
control of the Company, which in turn could reduce the price potential investors are willing to pay for the Company.
In addition, these owners could use their voting influence to maintain the Company’s existing management, delay or
prevent changes in control of the Company, or support or reject other management and board proposals that are subject
to owner approval.

BUSINESS

Description of the Business
Frame is a media company made for the mobile era. We publish riveting documentaries in an immersive, interactive
format made for mobile phones - helping new generations forge a deeper connection with the news.

Business Plan
Problem:

We are in the middle of a news crisis. More than 40% of American adults are actively avoiding the news, and nearly
70% are overwhelmed by it. This is not only a major concern for our democracy, but a big opportunity to create a new
kind of media company that reengages news consumers.

Solution:

Frame rethinks the voice, format, and distribution of news in order to deliver an experience that both solves news
avoidance and fundamentally expands the market for digital journalism.

Frame stories are 10-15 minute short documentaries in the style of narrative non-fiction (think Netflix’s Wild Wild
Country or the podcast, Serial). Every Frame story takes a major issue in the news, from the opioid crisis to the rise
of immigration enforcement, and tells a plot-driven, human story at the heart of it. News can be dry, boring, or
confusing, and Frame changes that by combining cinematic human stories with depth and context about the issue at
hand.

In addition to our unique editorial voice, we have developed a new kind of story format for mobile. Frame stories are
published in a vertical video, tap-through format, that includes interactive features throughout (from maps to timelines)
that allow viewers to dive deeper into the piece.

We then deliver our mobile-first, interactive documentaries primarily through SMS, where subscribers can receive
news updates on stories they’re interested in following and ask our journalists questions directly via text.

Traction:

We believe the Frame format outperforms industry standards. Our stories have an average watch time of more than
5:00 minutes, which is 18x the average watch time for a video on the Facebook newsfeed (:17). In addition, our
subscriber count has been growing more than 18% MoM. In Q4 2019 we landed a branded content deal with a major
U.S. nonprofit and plan to launch paid subscriptions in Q2 2020.

Litigation
None

USE OF PROCEEDS
We will adjust roles and tasks based on the net proceeds of the Offering. We plan to use these proceeds as described
below.

Offering Expenses
The use of proceeds for expenses related to the Combined Offering is as follows:
e If the Company raises the Target Amount, it will use 47.50% of the proceeds, or $11,750, towards offering
expenses;
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e Ifthe Company raises the Closing Amount, it will use 14.17% of the proceeds, or $21,250, towards offering
expenses; and

e Ifthe Company raises the Maximum Amount, it will use 8.5% of the proceeds, or $85,000, towards offering
expenses

The proceeds remaining after meeting offering expenses will be used as follows:

Use of Proceeds % if Target Amount Raised] % if Closing Amount % if Maximum Amount
Raised Raised
Editorial 57% 57% 57%
Product 13% 13% 13%
Marketing 13% 13% 13%
Branded 8% 8% 8%
General & Administrative 7% 7% 7%
Services/Software 2% 2% 2%

The above table of the anticipated use of proceeds is not binding on the Company and is merely a description of its
current intentions.

We reserve the right to change the above use of proceeds if management believes it is in the best interests of the
Company.

DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, AND MANAGERS

The directors, officers, and managers of the Company are listed below along with all positions and offices held at the
Company and their principal occupations and employment responsibilities for the past three (3) years.

Name Positions and Offices Held at the[Principal Occupation and
Company Employment Responsibilities for the

Last Three (3) Years
Ben Moe Founder & Chief Executive Officer ~ [Responsible for leading Frame's

editorial output, growth, fundraising,
and overall company strategy.

Thomas Barnes Chief Product Officer Responsible for leading Frame's
product development, technology, and

helping to lead Frame's editorial output.

CAPITALIZATION AND OWNERSHIP
Capitalization

The Company has issued the following outstanding Securities:

Type of security Amount Voting rights | AntiDilution |How this security| Percentage Other
outstanding Rights may limit, dilute, jownership of the| material
or qualify the |[Company by the| terms
Securities issues | holders of such
pursuant to this | securities prior
Offering to the Offering
Preferred Equity $150,000 YES N/A N/A 6% N/A
The Company has the following debt outstanding:
None.
Ownership

A majority of the Company is owned by a few individuals. Those individuals are Benjamin Moe and Thomas Barnes.

Below are the beneficial owners of 20% percent or more of the Company’s outstanding voting equity securities,
calculated on the basis of voting power, listed along with the amount they own.
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IName ’Number and type/class of securityPercentage ownership
held

Ben Moe 1,700,000 Common 68%

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Please see the financial information listed on the cover page of this Form C and attached hereto in addition to
the following information. Financial statements are attached hereto as Exhibit B.

Operations

Frame Media Inc. (“the Company”) was incorporated on June 4, 2019 under the laws of the State of Delaware, and is
headquartered in Brooklyn, New York. The Company is a digital newsmagazine providing narrative journalism
content directly to customers’ mobile devices.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The proceeds from the Offering are essential to our operations. We plan to use the proceeds as set forth above under
"Use of Proceeds", which is an indispensable element of our business strategy. The Offering proceeds will have a
beneficial effect on our liquidity, as we have approximately $19,889.80 in cash on hand as of January 31, 2020 which
will be augmented by the Offering proceeds and used to execute our business strategy.

The Company currently does not have any additional outside sources of capital other than the proceeds from the
Combined Offerings.

Capital Expenditures and Other Obligations
The Company does not intend to make any material capital expenditures in the future.

Trends and Uncertainties

After reviewing the above discussion of the steps the Company intends to take, potential Purchasers should consider
whether achievement of each step within the estimated time frame is realistic in their judgment. Potential Purchasers
should also assess the consequences to the Company of any delays in taking these steps and whether the Company
will need additional financing to accomplish them.

The financial statements are an important part of this Form C and should be reviewed in their entirety. The financial
statements of the Company are attached hereto as Exhibit B.

Valuation

Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider this valuation and the factors used to reach such
valuation. Such valuation may not be accurate and you are encouraged to determine your own independent value of
the Company prior to investing.

As discussed in "Dilution" below, the valuation will determine the amount by which the investor’s stake is diluted
immediately upon investment. An early-stage company typically sells its shares (or grants options over its shares) to
its founders and early employees at a very low cash cost, because they are, in effect, putting their "sweat equity" into
the Company. When the Company seeks cash investments from outside investors, like you, the new investors typically
pay a much larger sum for their shares than the founders or earlier investors.

There are several ways to value a company. None of them is perfect and all of them involve a certain amount of
guesswork. The same method can produce a different valuation if used by a different person.

Ligquidation Value - The amount for which the assets of the Company can be sold, minus the liabilities owed, e.g., the
assets of a bakery include the cake mixers, ingredients, baking tins, etc. The liabilities of a bakery include the cost of
rent or mortgage on the bakery. However, Liquidation Value does not reflect the potential value of a business, e.g.,
the value of the secret recipe. The value for most startups lies in their potential, as many early stage companies do not
have many assets.

Book Value - This is based on analysis of the Company’s financial statements, usually looking at the Company’s
balance sheet as prepared by its accountants. However, the balance sheet only looks at costs (i.e., what was paid for

13



the asset), and does not consider whether the asset has increased in value over time. In addition, some intangible assets,
such as patents, trademarks, or trade names, may be very valuable but may not be represented at their market value
on the balance sheet.

Earnings Approach - This is based on what the investor will pay (the present value) for what the investor expects to
obtain in the future (the future return), taking into account inflation, the lost opportunity to participate in other
investments, and the risk of not receiving the return. However, predictions of the future are uncertain and valuation of
future returns is a best guess.

Different methods of valuation produce a different answer as to what your investment is worth. For example,
liquidation value and book value may produce a lower valuation than the earnings approach, which may be based on
assumptions about the future.

Future investors (including people seeking to acquire the Company) may value the Company differently. They may
use a different valuation method, or different assumptions about the Company’s business and its market. Different
valuations may mean that the value assigned to your investment changes and may cause the value of the Company to

decrease.

Previous Offerings of Securities
We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

Previous Offering| Date of Previous Offering Type of Securities Amount of  |Use of Proceeds of|
Offering Exemption Relied Offered Securities Sold the Previous
Upon Offering
Pre-Seed July 2019 4(a)(b) Preferred Equity  [$150,000 \Working Capital

THE OFFERING AND THE SECURITIES

The Securities Offered in this Offering

The following description is a brief summary of the material terms of the Securities being offered and is qualified in
its entirety by the terms contained in the Crowd Notes.

The Crowd Notes sold in this Offering will convert in the following circumstances:

(which is a preferred stock financing of at least $1,000,000).

preferred stock sold in the qualified equity financing.

If a "corporate transaction" (such as the sale of the Company) occurs prior to a "qualified equity financing"
Once a "qualified equity financing" occurs, the notes thereafter will automatically convert into the shares of

If the maturity date is reached, the note holders will have the option, by decision of the majority outstanding

note holders, to convert into the Company’s most senior class of preferred stock, and if no preferred stock
has been issued, then shares of the Company’s common stock.

The price at which the Crowd Notes sold in this Offering will convert will be:

the conversion takes place after the qualified equity financing;

At a discount of 20% to the price in the qualified equity financing, subject to a $5,000,000 valuation cap, if

If conversion takes place prior to a qualified equity financing due to a corporate transaction, the greater of

the outstanding principal of the Crowd Notes plus accrued unpaid interest, or the amount of stock the Crowd
Notes would convert into under the valuation cap; or

subject to a $5,000,000 valuation cap.

If conversion takes place prior to a qualified equity financing because the maturity date has been reached,

Until the earlier of the qualified equity financing or the corporate transaction, the Crowd Notes accrue an annual
interest rate of 5%, compounded quarterly.

The securities into which the Crowd Notes in this Offering will convert will have more limited voting and information
rights than those to be issued to Major Investors on conversion.

Our Target Amount for this Offering to investors under Regulation Crowdfunding is $25,000.
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Additionally, we have set a minimum Closing Amount of $150,000 between our Combined Offerings under
Regulation Crowdfunding and Regulation D, which we will need to meet before the Offering may close.

The minimum investment in this Offering is $1,000. SeedInvest Auto Invest participants have a lower investment
minimum in this offering of $200. Investments of $20,000 or greater will only be accepted through the Regulation D
offering.

Securities Sold Pursuant to Regulation D
The Company is selling securities in a concurrent offering to accredited investors under Rule 506(c) under the 1933
Act at the same time as this Offering under Regulation Crowdfunding (together, the "Combined Offerings").

The Crowd Notes in the Regulation D offering convert under similar terms to the Crowd Notes in this offering.
However, investors who invest $50,000 or greater will be considered "Major Investors" under the Crowd Note. All
other investors will be considered “non-Major Investors.” Major Investors will be entitled to greater information rights
than Non-Major Investors in the Combined Offerings. In the future, Major Investors may also be entitled to greater
voting rights than their non-major counterparts.

Dilution

Even once the Crowd Note converts into preferred or common equity securities, as applicable, the investor’s stake in
the Company could be diluted due to the Company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the Company
issues more shares (or additional equity interests), the percentage of the Company that you own will go down, even
though the value of the Company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in
number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round or angel investment), employees exercising stock options, or by
conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If a company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth
less than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may
also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the
company offers dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any
earnings into the company).

The type of dilution that hurts early-stage investors mostly occurs when a company sells more shares in a "down
round," meaning at a lower valuation than in earlier offerings. An example of how this might occur is as follows
(numbers are for illustrative purposes only):

e In June 2014 Jane invests $20,000 for shares that represent 2% of a company valued at $1 million.

e In December, the company is doing very well and sells $5 million in shares to venture capitalists on a
valuation (before the new investment) of $10 million. Jane now owns only 1.3% of the company but her stake
is worth $200,000.

e In June 2015 the company has run into serious problems and in order to stay afloat it raises $1 million at a
valuation of only $2 million (the "down round"). Jane now owns only 0.89% of the company and her stake
is worth only $26,660.

This type of dilution might also happen upon conversion of convertible notes into shares. Typically, the terms of
convertible notes issued by early-stage companies provide that in the event of another round of financing, the holders
of the convertible notes get to convert their notes into equity at a "discount” to the price paid by the new investors,
i.e., they get more shares than the new investors would for the same price. Additionally, convertible notes may have
a "price cap" on the conversion price, which effectively acts as a share price ceiling. Either way, the holders of the
convertible notes get more shares for their money than new investors. In the event that the financing is a "down round"
the holders of the convertible notes will dilute existing equity holders, and even more than the new investors do,
because they get more shares for their money.

If you are making an investment expecting to own a certain percentage of the Company or expecting each share to
hold a certain amount of value, it’s important to realize how the value of those shares can decrease by actions taken
by the Company. Dilution can make drastic changes to the value of each share, ownership percentage, voting control,
and earnings per share.

Tax Matters
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EACH PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OWN TAX AND ERISA ADVISOR
AS TO THE PARTICULAR CONSEQUENCES TO THE PURCHASER OF THE PURCHASE,
OWNERSHIP AND SALE OF THE PURCHASER’S SECURITIES, AS WELL AS POSSIBLE CHANGES
IN THE TAX LAWS. }

Restrictions on Transfer

Any Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF being offered may not be transferred by any Purchaser of such
Securities during the one-year holding period beginning when the Securities were issued, unless such Securities are
transferred: 1) to the Company, 2) to an accredited investor, as defined by Rule 501(a) of Regulation D promulgated
under the 1933 Act, 3) as part of an IPO or 4) to a member of the family of the Purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the Purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the Purchaser or the
equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the Purchaser or other similar circumstances. "Member of
the family" as used herein means a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal
equivalent, sibling, mother/father/daughter/son/sister/brother-in-law and includes adoptive relationships. Remember
that although you may legally be able to transfer the Securities, you may not be able to find another party willing to
purchase them.

In addition to the foregoing restrictions, prior to making any transfer of the Securities or any Securities into which
they are convertible, such transferring Purchaser must either make such transfer pursuant to an effective registration
statement filed with the SEC or provide the Company with an opinion of counsel stating that a registration statement
is not necessary to effect such transfer.

Other Material Terms
The Company does not have the right to repurchase the Securities. The Securities do not have a stated return or
liquidation preference.

Related Person Transactions

From time to time the Company may engage in transactions with related persons. Related persons are defined as any
manager, director, or officer of the Company; any person who is the beneficial owner of 10 percent or more of the
Company’s outstanding voting equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power; any promoter of the
Company; any immediate family member of any of the foregoing persons or an entity controlled by any such person
or persons.

The Company has conducted the following transactions with related persons:
During the period ended September 30, 2019, the Company advanced funds to a shareholder of the Company.
Amounts owed to the Company as of September 30, 2019 are non-interest bearing and have no maturity date. At
September 30, 2019 the outstanding amount owed to the Company is $1,451.

Conflicts of Interest
The Company has engaged in the following transactions or relationships, which may give rise to a conflict of interest
with the Company, its operations and its security holders: None.

OTHER INFORMATION

Bad Actor Disclosure
None.

SEEDINVEST INVESTMENT PROCESS

Making an Investment in the Company

How does investing work?

When you complete your investment on SeedInvest, your money will be transferred to an escrow account where an
independent escrow agent will watch over your investment until it is accepted by the Company. Once the Company
accepts your investment, and certain regulatory procedures are completed, your money will be transferred from the
escrow account to the Company in exchange for your Crowd Note. At that point, you will be an investor in the

Company.

SeedInvest Regulation CF rules regarding the investment process:
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e Investors may cancel an investment commitment until 48 hours prior to the deadline identified in the issuer’s
Offering materials;

o The intermediary will notify investors when the target offering amount has been met;

e The Company is making concurrent offerings under both Regulation CF and Regulation D and unless the
Company raises at least the target amount under the Regulation CF Offering and the closing amount under
both offerings, it will not close this Offering;

e If an issuer reaches a target offering amount and the closing amount prior to the deadline identified in its
offering materials, it may close the Offering early if it provides notice about the new Offering deadline at
least five business days prior to such new Offering deadline;

e If there is a material change and an investor does not reconfirm his or her investment commitment, the
investor’s investment commitment will be cancelled and the committed funds will be returned;

e If an issuer does not reach both the target offering amount and the closing offering amount prior to the
deadline identified in its offering materials, no Securities will be sold in the Offering, investment
commitments will be cancelled and committed funds will be returned; and

e If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-hour period prior to the Offering
deadline, the funds will be released to the issuer upon closing of the Offering and the investor will receive
Securities in exchange for his or her investment.

What will I need to complete my investment?

To make an investment you will need the following information readily available:
Personal information such as your current address and phone number
Employment and employer information

Net worth and income information

Social Security Number or government-issued identification

ABA bank routing number and checking account number

el

What is the difference between preferred equity and a convertible note?

Preferred equity is usually issued to outside investors and carries rights and conditions that are different from that of
common stock. For example, preferred equity may include rights that prevent or minimize the effects of dilution or
grants special privileges in situations when the Company is sold.

A convertible note is a unique form of debt that converts into equity, usually in conjunction with a future financing
round. The investor effectively loans money to the Company with the expectation that they will receive equity in the
Company in the future at a discounted price per share when the Company raises its next round of financing. To learn
more about startup investment types, check out "How to Choose a Startup Investment" in the SeedInvest Academy.

How much can I invest?
An investor is limited in the amount that he or she may invest in a Regulation Crowdfunding Offering during any 12-
month period:
e If either the annual income or the net worth of the investor is less than $107,000, the investor is limited to
the greater of $2,000 or 5% of the lesser of his or her annual income or net worth.
e If the annual income and net worth of the investor are both equal to or greater than $107,000, the investor is
limited to 10% of the lesser of his or her annual income or net worth, to a maximum of $107,000. Separately,
the Company has set a minimum investment amount.

How can I (or the Company) cancel my investment?

For Offerings made under Regulation Crowdfunding, you may cancel your investment at any time up to 48 hours
before a closing occurs or an earlier date set by the Company. You will be sent a reminder notification approximately
five days before the closing or set date giving you an opportunity to cancel your investment if you had not already
done so. Once a closing occurs, and if you have not cancelled your investment, you will receive an email notifying
you that your Securities have been issued. If you have already funded your investment, let SeedInvest know by
emailing cancellations@seedinvest.com. Please include your name, the Company’s name, the amount, the investment
number, and the date you made your investment.

After My Investment

What is my ongoing relationship with the Company?

You are an investor in the Company, you do own securities after all! But more importantly, companies that have raised
money via Regulation Crowdfunding must file information with the SEC and post it on their website on an annual
basis. Receiving regular company updates is important to keep investors educated and informed about the progress of
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the Company and their investments. This annual report includes information similar to the Company’s initial Form C
filing and key information that a company will want to share with its investors to foster a dynamic and healthy
relationship.

In certain circumstances a company may terminate its ongoing reporting requirements if:

(1) the Company is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

(2) the Company has filed at least three annual reports pursuant to Regulation CF and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) the Company has filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation CF and has fewer than 300 holders
of record;

(4) the Company or another party repurchases all of the Securities issued in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the
1933 Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any complete redemption of redeemable
securities; or

(5) the Company liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

However, regardless of whether a company has terminated its ongoing reporting requirements per SEC rules,
SeedInvest works with all companies on its platform to ensure that investors are provided quarterly updates. These
quarterly reports will include information such as: (i) quarterly net sales, (ii) quarterly change in cash and cash on
hand, (iii) material updates on the business, (iv) fundraising updates (any plans for next round, current round status,
etc.), and (v) any notable press and news.

How do I keep track of this investment?
You can return to SeedInvest at any time to view your portfolio of investment and obtain a summary statement. In
addition to monthly account statements, you may also receive periodic updates from the Company about its business.

Can I get rid of my Securities after buying them?
Securities purchased through a Regulation Crowdfunding Offering are not freely transferable for one year after the
date of purchase, except in the case where they are transferred:
1. To the Company that sold the Securities
2. To an accredited investor
3. As part of an Offering registered with the SEC (think IPO)
4. To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the purchaser, to a trust
created for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser, or in connection with the death or divorce
of the purchaser

Regardless, after the one year holding period has expired, you should not plan on being able to readily transfer and/or
sell your security. Currently, there is no market or liquidity for these Securities and the Company does not have any
plans to list these Securities on an exchange or other secondary market. At some point the Company may choose to
do so, but until then you should plan to hold your investment for a significant period of time before a "liquidation
event" occurs.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the
requirements for filing on Form C and has duly caused this Form to be signed on its behalf by the duly authorized
undersigned.

/s/Benjamin Moe
(Signature)

Benjamin Moe
(Name)

Founder, CEO
(Title)

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Regulation
Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), this Form C has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the
dates indicated.

/s/Benjamin Moe

(Signature)

Benjamin Moe
(Name)

Founder, CEO
(Title)

March 2, 2020
(Date)

/s/Thomas Barnes

(Signature)

Thomas Barnes
(Name)

Chief Product Officer
(Title)

March 2, 2020
(Date)
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Instructions.

1. The form shall be signed by the issuer, its principal executive officer or officers, its principal financial officer,

its controller or principal accounting officer and at least a majority of the board of directors or persons performing
similar functions.

2. The name of each person signing the form shall be typed or printed beneath the signature.

Intentional misstatements or omissions of facts constitute federal criminal violations. See 18 U.S.C. 1001.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REVIEW REPORT

To the Management of
Frame Media Inc.
Brooklyn, New York

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Frame Media Inc. (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as of September 30, 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes
in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the period from June 4, 2019 (inception) ended September 30,
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical
procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding
the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or
error.

Accountants’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for
reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial
statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for my (our)
conclusion.

Accountants’ Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered losses since
inception and has yet to launch principal operations, and has stated that substantial doubt exists about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s evaluation of the events and
conditions and management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 2. The financial
statements do not include any adjustment that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our
conclusion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Puc s?#kssoaaﬁy T, ece

Spokane, Washington
February 21, 2020



FRAME MEDIA INC.
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2019
(unaudited)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Related party receivable

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, 150,000 shares issued
and outstanding at September 30, 2019
Common stock, no shares issued
and outstanding at September 30, 2019

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accountants' review report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2

83,691
1,451

85,142

1,856
833

87,831

19,797

19,797

19,797

15

149,985
(81,966)

68,034

87,831




For the Period from June 4, 2019 (inception) Ended September 30, 2019

FRAME MEDIA INC.
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited)

Revenue, net

Operating expenses
Payroll and related expenses
Travel/relocation
Professional fees
Marketing
General and administrative
Rent
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Loss before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net loss

See accountants' review report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

3

261

26,484
24,420
22,707
4,498
3,227
697
194

82,227

(81,966)

(81,966)
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FRAME MEDIA INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Period from June 4, 2019 (inception) Ended September 30, 2019

(unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities

Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Related party receivable

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for the purchase of fixed assets
Payments for the purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest

Income taxes

See accountants' review report and accompanying notes to the financial statements.

5

$

(81,966)

194

19,797
(1,451)

(63,426)

(1,883)
(1,000)

(2,883)

150,000

150,000

83,691

83,691




FRAME MEDIA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
For the Period from June 4, 2019 (inception) Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business

Frame Media Inc. (“the Company”) was incorporated on June 4, 2019 under the laws of the State of Delaware, and is
headquartered in Brooklyn, New York. The Company is a digital newsmagazine providing narrative journalism content
directly to customers’ mobile devices.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered
necessary for a fair presentation have been included. All such adjustments are normal and recurring in nature.
The Company'’s fiscal year-end is March 31.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the

reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with the following core principles of Accounting Standards
Codification Section 606:

o |dentify the contract with a customer,

Identify the performance obligations in the contract,

Determine the transaction price,

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract,
Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company has not commenced principal operations. There is a risk that the Company does not successfully
secure sufficient financing or assets required to begin principal operations.



FRAME MEDIA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
For the Period from June 4, 2019 (inception) Ended September 30, 2019

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on
whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect
market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect market assumptions. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of
the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 primarily consists of financial instruments
whose value is based on quoted market prices such as exchange-traded instruments and listed equities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly (e.g., quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities in active markets, or
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active).

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Financial instruments are considered Level 3 when
their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flows or similar techniques and at
least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities reported in the balance sheets approximate their fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less to be cash
equivalents. At September 30, 2019, the Company had no items, other than bank deposits, that would be
considered cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, that may at times, exceed
federal insured limits. No losses have been recognized as a result of these excess amounts.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the related
assets using the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. Additions and improvements are
capitalized while routing repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Upon sale or disposition,
the recorded asset cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from accounts and the net amount, less
proceeds received from disposal, is charged or credited to other income or expense. The Company reviews the
recoverability of all long-lived assets, including the related useful lives, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a long-lived asset might not be recoverable. No impairment
was considered necessary at September 30, 2019.

Depreciation expense for the period ended September 30, 2019 was $27.



FRAME MEDIA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
For the Period from June 4, 2019 (inception) Ended September 30, 2019

Intangibles

Costs for internally-developed software to be marketed to outside users are recorded pursuant to ASC Section 985
Software. Research and development costs prior to attaining ‘technological feasibility’ are expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred thereafter to develop the final product are capitalized and amortized over an estimated useful life of the
asset using the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. The Company reviews the recoverability of
internally-developed software assets, including the useful lives, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. No impairment was deemed necessary at September 30, 2019.

Costs to develop or obtain software for internal use are recorded pursuant to ASC Section 350 Intangibles — Goodwill
and Other. Costs incurred to develop and obtain the internal use software are capitalized and amortized over an
estimated useful life of the asset using the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. The Company
reviews the recoverability of software assets, including the useful lives, whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. No impairment was deemed necessary at September 30,
2019.

Advertising costs
The Company’s advertising costs are expensed as incurred. During the period ended September 30, 2019 the
Company recognized $4,498 in advertising costs recorded under the heading ‘Marketing’ in the statement of

operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC Section 718 Compensation — Stock
Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based compensation cost is measured at
the grant date based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense ratably over the requisite service
period, which is generally the option vesting period.

For non-employee stock-based compensation, the Company has adopted ASU 2018-07, Improvements to
Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting which expands the scope of ASC 718 Compensation — Stock
Compensation, to include share-based payment transactions for acquiring goods and services from nonemployees
and requires stock-based compensation related to non-employees to be accounted for based on the fair value of the
related stock or options or the fair value of the services on the grant date, whichever is more readily determinable in
accordance with ASC Topic 718.



FRAME MEDIA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
For the Period from June 4, 2019 (inception) Ended September 30, 2019

Income Taxes

The Company assesses its income tax positions and records tax benefits for the period since inception subject to
examination based upon its evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the reporting date. In
accordance with ASC 740-10, for those tax positions where there is a greater than 50% likelihood that a tax benefit
will be sustained, our policy is to record the largest amount of tax benefit that is more likely than not to be realized
upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. For those income
tax positions where there is less than 50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit will be
recognized in the financial statements. The Company has determined that there are no material uncertain tax
positions.

The Company accounts for income taxes based on the provisions promulgated by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”)
and the state of New York, which have a statute of limitation of three years from the due date of the return. As such,

all tax years are open since the Company’s inception.

The Company’s federal net operating losses are subject to an 80% limitation on taxable income, does not expire,
and will carry on indefinitely.

The Company has not yet filed its tax return for 2019, however, the following table outlines the estimated deferred
tax assets of the Company at September 30, 2019:

Deferred tax asset:

Net operating loss carryforward S 17,213
Total deferred tax asset 17,213
Valuation allowance (17,213)
Deferred tax asset, net S -

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

No recently issued accounting pronouncements are expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through February 21, 2020, the date these financial statements were
available to be issued.



FRAME MEDIA INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
For the Period from June 4, 2019 (inception) Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - GOING CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as
a going concern, which contemplates the recoverability of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal
course of business.

The Company has incurred losses from inception of $81,966, and has not launched principal operations which,
among other factors, raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The
ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is dependent upon management's plans to raise additional
capital from the issuance of debt or the sale of stock, its ability to commence profitable sales of its flagship
product, and its ability to generate positive operational cash flow. The accompanying financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might be required should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

NOTE 3 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the period ended September 30, 2019, the Company advanced funds to a shareholder of the Company.
Amounts owed to the Company as of September 30, 2019 are non-interest bearing and have no maturity date.
At September 30, 2019 the outstanding amount owed to the Company is $1,451.

NOTE 4 - COMMON STOCK

At September 30, 2019 the Company has 1,950,000, $.0001 par value, shares of voting common stock authorized
and 400,000, $.0001 par value, shares of non-voting common stock authorized. There are no common shares
issued and outstanding.

During the period ended September 30, 2019, the Company granted 150,000 shares of non-voting common stock
with a fair value of $150 to four individuals for services during the period. Of these shares, 75,000 vested
immediately and the other 75,000 vest 25% at March 1, 2020, with the remaining vesting ratably over the period
of service. As of September 30, 2019, these shares have not been issued and are not reflected in the statement of
stockholders’ equity.

During the period ended September 30, 2019, the Company executed subscription agreements for 1,950,000
shares of voting common stock to two individuals. Total consideration to be received is $195. As of September 30,
2019, these shares have not been issued and payment has not been received by the Company. There were no
common stock transactions reflected in the statement of stockholders’ equity during the period ending September
30, 2019, given no common shares have yet been issued and the overall fair value of common stock transactions
are insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(unaudited)
For the Period from June 4, 2019 (inception) Ended September 30, 2019

NOTE 5 —-PREFERRED STOCK

The Company has 150,000, $.0001 par value, shares of series seed preferred stock authorized at September 30,
2019. During the period ended September 30, 2019, the Company issued 150,000 series seed preferred shares for
total cash proceeds of $150,000. At September 30, 2019 the Company had 150,000 preferred shares issued and
outstanding.

Holders of preferred shares of the Company receive liquidation preference in any liquidation, dissolution, or
winding up of the Company, and participate in voting matters in an amount equal to the number of common
shares in which the preferred shares may be converted. Each share of preferred stock is convertible, at the option
of the holder, at any time, and without the payment of additional consideration, into fully paid and nonassessable
common stock initially one a one to one basis. There are adjustments for future conversions should there be
certain dividends and or distributions to common stockholders as discussed in the Company’s amended articles
of incorporation.
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Purchase securities are not currently tra ea le. Ex ectto hol your investment until the com any lists on a national exchange or is ac uire .

Frame is offering securities un er oth Regulation D an Regulation CF through S| Securities, LLC (Sl Securities”). SI Securities is an affiliate of See Invest Technology, LLC, a registere  roker- ealer,an mem er FINRA/SIPC. SI Securities will receive cash com ensation e ual to 7.50% of the value
of the securities sol an e uity com ensation e ual to 5.00% of the num er of securities sol . Investments ma e un er oth Regulation Dan Regulation CF involve a high egree of risk an those investors who cannot affor  to lose their entire investment shoul not invest. Furthermore, the
contents of the Highlights, Term Sheet sections have een re are y S| Securitiesan shall e eeme roker- ealer communications su ject to FINRA Rule 2210 (the “Exclu e Sections”). With the exce tion of the Exclu e Sections note a ove, this rofile contains offering materials re are
solely y Frame without the assistance of SI Securities, an ot su ject to FINRA Rule 2210 (the “Issuer Profile”). The Issuer Profile may contain forwar -looking statements an  information relating to, among other things, the com any, its usiness lanan strategy, an itsin ustry. Investors shoul
review the risks an__isclosures in the offering’s raft. The contents of this rofile are meant to e a summary of the information foun in the com any’s Form C. Before making an investment  ecision, investors shoul review the com any’s Form C for acom lete escri tion of its usiness an

offering information, a co y of whichmay e foun  oth herean _elow.

Com any Highlights

> Gra uate an receive investmentfromSna Inc’s Yellow Accelerator

> Grew su scri ers more than 18% month over month (from Decem er 2019 to January 2020)
> Secure a ai , ran e content eal withamajor .S.non rofit

> Press coverage from nota le u licationsinclu ing TechCrunch, Poynter, an Journalism.co.uk

> Our stories have an average watch time of more than 5:00 minutes, which is 18x+ the average watch time for avi eo on the Face ook newsfee (:17)

Fun raise Highlights

> Total Roun Size: S $1,000,000

> Raise Descri tion: See

> Minimum Investment: S $1,000 er investor

> Target Minimum Raise Amount: ~ S $150,000

> Offering Ty : Si e ySi eOffering

P QffiE MEdMuation Ca /



Highlighiuation Ca : S $4,000,000 efore Mar 21, 2020

Ovepvi¥gjuation Ca Sche ule: See Full Sche ule
The Team

Term Sheet
| FraTekis ame iacom anyma eforthemo ileera. We u lishriveting ocumentaries in animmersive, interactive format ma e for mo ile hones - hel ing new generations forgea ee er connection with the news.
nvestor Perks

Prior Roun s
—

Market Lan sca e

Pro lem:

Data Room
Weare inthe mi le of a news crisis. More than 40% of American a ults are actively avoi ing the news, an nearly 70% are overwhelme y it. This is not only a major concern for our emocracy, uta igo ortunity to create anew kin of me iacom any that reengages news

£ psiomments

@ FAQs
Solution:

2 see Invest

Frame rethinks the voice, format,an istri ution of newsinor erto eliveranex eriencethat oth solves news avoi ancean fun amentally ex an s the market for igital journalism.

Frame stories are 10-15 minute short ocumentaries in the style of narrative non-fiction (think Netflixs Wil Wil Country or the o cast, Serial). Every Frame story takes a major issue in the news, from the o ioi crisis to the rise of immigration enforcement, an tellsa lot-

riven, human story at the heart of it. News can e ry, oring, or confusing,an Frame changes that y com ining cinematic human stories with e than contexta out the issue at han .

Ina itionto ouruni uee itorial voice, we have evelo e anewkin of story format for mo ile. Frame stories are u lishe ina vertical vi eo, ta -through format, thatinclu es interactive features throughout (from ma s to timelines) that allow viewers to ive ee erinto the

iece.

We then eliver our mo ile-first, interactive ocumentaries rimarily through SMS, where su scri ers can receive news u  ates on stories they’re intereste in followingan ask our journalists uestions irectly via text.

Traction:

We elieve the Frame format out erformsin ustry stan ar s. Our stories have an average watch time of more than 5:00 minutes, which is 18x the average watch time for avi eo on the Face ook newsfee (:17).Ina ition, oursu scri er count has een growing more than 18%

MoM.In Q42019 welan e a ran e content eal withamajor .S.non rofitan lantolaunch ai su scri tionsin Q2 2020.

Pitch Deck

IFIRAME

CONFIDENTIAL
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Overview

The Team

Term Sheet

Investor Perks

Prior Roun s

Market Lan sca e & frame.media

Greenmood
Data Room

TAP HERE TO CONTINUE

o0 A FAMILY’S FIGHT TO STAY
comments € TOGETHER AFTER ONE OF THE
BIGGEST ICE RAIDS IN U.S.
RY

@ FAQs
= See Invest 3 = » Pi ‘

Jackson

&)

S ==
TAP TO CONTINUE

- My aunt caligdmg,and told me,
READING TIME: 13 - 16 MIN ; —

cflr | Map doto © OpanSiratHiop contibuors, CCEYSA, imagery ©|
apbox

< h m O

Me ia Mentions

TI= TechCrunch POynteI'. journalism

The Team

Foun ersan Officers

Ben Moe
FO NDER & CHIEF EXEC TIVE OFFICER

Ben Moe is the foun eran CEO of Frame, a newsmagazine ma e for the mo ile era. Frame was selecte to artici atein Sna Inc.’s Yellow Accelerator, an has een covere y TechCrunch, Poynter, an Journalism.co.uk. Ben is a 2019 Folio Rising Star Honoree an gra uate magna cum lau e
from Colum ia niversity in 2016.

Tom Barnes
CHIEF PROD CT OFFICER

P OFILE MEN




Highlights

Overview

The Team

Termi@Rdnes is Frame’s Chief Pro uct Officer. After gra uating from NY , he worke at Mic, ecoming the music e itor for the site. After Mic, Tom worke asame ia lanner for Byte, hel ing to manage igital marketing for S otify inthe S.Tom wasacce te intoan artici ate in the NYC Tech
Talent Pieline.

Investor Perks

Prior Roun s

Markgiy- 467 Mem ers

Louis Stein

Musical Director

& See Invest

Alyona Minkovski

Narrator

A am DiCarlo

Pro ucer
Nota le A visors & Investors
Yellow
- W Amy OLeary

A visor, Former VP of Content, Hea s ace
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Prior Roun s

Marike1tan Sheet

ASi e ySi eoffering referstoa eal that is raising ca ital un er two offeringty es. If you lan on investing less than S $20,000.00, you will automatically invest un  er the Regulation CF offering ty e. If you invest more than S $20,000.00, you must e an accre ite investor

Dat3,Ro%Mest un er the Regulation D offering ty e.

€ 0 comments

®

2 BeeNndiste:

Fun raising Descri tion
FAQs

Roun  size:
Minimum investment:
Target Minimum:
Key Terms

Security Ty e:

Conversion iscount:

Interest rate:

A itional Terms

Custo y of Shares

Closing con itions:

Regulation CF ca :

Transfer restrictions:

se of Procee s

If Minimum Amount Is Raise

@ : o @ ro @ tareting Bran

General &A ministrative @ services/sofware

P OFILE MEN

See
S $1,000,000
S $1,000

S $150,000

Tiere Crow Note (SWIFT)

20.0%

S $4,000,000 no later than Mar 20, 2020
S $4,500,000 no later than A r 3, 2020
S $5,000,000 Final

5.0%

24 months

Investors who invest $50,000 or less will have their securities hel in trust with a Custo ian that will serve as a single sharehol er of recor .

These investors will e su ject to the Custo ian’s Account Agreement, inclu ing the electronic elivery of all re uire information.

While Frame has set an overall target minimum of S $150,000 for the roun , Frame must raise at least S $25,000 of that amount through
the Regulation CF  ortion of their raise efore einga leto con ucta close on any investments elow $20,000. For further information

lease refer to Frame’s Form C.

While Frame is offeringu to S $1,000,000 worth of securities in its See , onlyu to S $0 of that amount may e raise through

Regulation CF.

Securities issue  through Regulation CF have a one year restriction on transfer from the ate of urchase (exce tto certain ualifie

artiesas s ecifie un er Section 4(a) (6) of the Securities Act of 1933), after which they ecome freely transfera le. While securities
issue through Regulation D are similarly consi ere “restricte securities” an investors must hol their securities in efinitely unless they
are registere with the SECan  ualifie y state authorities, or an exem tion from such registrationan  ualification re uirements is
availa le.



Highlights If Maximum Amount Is Raise

Overview

The Team
Term Sheet
Investor Perks
Prior Roun s

Market Lan sca e

Data Room
€ 0 comments
@ FAQs

& see Invest

@ : o @ v @ arieting oren ¢

General &A ministrative @ seriices/software

Investor Perks

For all investors:
* Aone-year free mem ershi to Frame (worth $50) which will start when ai mem ershi s launch in Q2 2020
For investors who invest in first two weeks:
* Alimite -e ition Frame t-shirt
For investors who invest $10,000 or more:
« Quarterlyu ate call with mem ers of Frame’s executive team
For investors who invest $ 5,000 or more in first two weeks:
* Annual rivate meetingan strategy session with foun eran executive team
e Quarterlyu ate call with mem ers of Frame’s executive team
For investors who invest $50,000 or more:
« Annual rivate meetingan strategy session with foun eran executive team
* Quarterlyu ate call with mem ers of Frame’s executive team
For investors who invest $100,000 or more:
* Invitation to ecome a Frame foun ing mem er which will inclu e your name on our site’s masthea
e Annual rivate meetingan strategy session with foun eran executive team

e Quarterlyu ate call with mem ers of Frame’s executive team

Itisa vise that you consult atax rofessional to fully un erstan any otential taxim lications of receiving investor erks efore making an investment.

Prior Roun s
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The Team
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Market Lan sca e

Data Room
€ 0 comments

@ FAQs

& see Invest

This chart oes not re resent guarantees of future valuation growth an for eclines.

Pre-See

Roun Size $$150,000
Close Date Jul 3,2019
Security Ty e Preferre E uity

Market Lan sca e

Digital Pu lishing (Magazinesan News a ers) Worl wi e

Inthe ast few years, narrative non-fiction storytelling has ex lo e with o casts like Serial getting hun re s of millions of ownloa san shows like Netflix's Making a Mur erer ecoming national henomena. At the same time, mo ile vi eo consum tion is growing ra i ly, with
Vi eo rojecte toaccount for 79% of all mo ile ata traffic y2022 (u from 59%in 2017). Des ite the growinga etite inthe S. for remium narrative non-fiction contentan the rise of mo ile vi eo,no u lisher we are aware of a art from Frame is focuse on making
narrative non-fictioninavi eo format ma e for mo ile evices. This ga in the market creates an o ening for Frame, which has een creating mo ile-first ocumentaries for more than two years,an ownsan o eratesa owerful content management system ca a le of
efficiently creating stories in this uni ue format.

Onto oftheex an ing market for Frame’s content, our core revenue streams, ai su scri tionan ran e content,are oth showing significant growth. Digital news su scri ersincrease 208% from 2013 - 2018, showing au iences’ growing willingness to ay for igital

journalism. Ina ition,a vertisersares en ingmoreon ran e content,with u lishers’ ran e content revenue increasing 40% year over year from 2017 - 2018. We have receive a lot of interest in using our interactive, mo ile-first format to tell ran s storiesan  lan to

grow ran e intoasix- igitannual usiness y2021.

Risks an Disclosures

The and commercialization of the Company’s products and services are competitive. It faces com etition with res ecttoany ro uctsan services that it may seekto evelo or commercialize in the future. Its com etitors inclu e major com anies worl wi e.
The news me  ia market is an emerging in ustry where new com etitors are entering the market fre uently. Many of the Com any’s com etitors have significantly greater financial, technical an human resources an may have su erior ex ertise in researchan  evelo ment an
marketinga rove servicesan thusmay e ettere ui e thantheCom anyto evelo an commercialize services. These com etitors also com ete with the Com any in recruitingan retaining ualifie ~ersonnelan ac uiring technologies. Smaller or early stage

com anies may also roveto e significant com etitors, articularly through colla orative arrangements with large an esta lishe com anies. Accor ingly, the Com any’s com etitors may commercialize ro ucts morera i ly or effectively than the Com anyisa le to, which
woul a versely affect its com etitive osition, the likelihoo that its services will achieve initial market acce tancean itsa ility to generate meaningfula itional revenues fromits ro uctsan services.

b OTAEEC&?ﬁany’s expenses will significantly increase as they seek to execute their current business model. Although the Com any estimates that it has enough runway until en of year, they will eram ingu cash urnto romote revenue growth, further evelo R&D,an

fun’ other Com any o erations after the raise. Doing so coul re uire significant effort an ex ense or may not e feasi le. /



The Company projects aggressive growth in 2020. If these assum tions are wrongan the rojections regar ing market enetration are too aggressive, then the financial forecast may overstate the Com any’s overall via lity. Ina  ition, the forwar -looking statements are only
Highlights
re ictions. The Com any has ase these forwar -looking statements largely on its current ex ectationsan  rojections a out future eventsan financial tren s thatit elieves may affect its usiness, financial con itionan results of o erations. Forwar -looking statements

OvelQ¥alve known an - unknown risks, uncertainties an other im ortant factors that may cause actual results, erformance or achievements to e materially ifferent from any future results, erformance or achievements ex resse orim lie y the forwar -looking statements.

The TogCompany may face challenges maintaining, promoting, and growing its brand through ing and icatic 2gies. It may rove ifficult for the Com any to ramatically increase the num  er of customers that it serves or to esta lish itself as a well-

known ran inthe com etitive news me ias ace. A itionally,the ro uctmay einamarket where customers will not have ran loyalty.
Term Sheet

The Company must correctly predict, identify, and interpret changes in consumer preferences and demand, offer new products to meet those changes, and respond to competitive innovation. Consumer references for the Com any’s ro ucts change continually. Its
Investor Perks " R . . . .

Success e en sonitsa lityto re ict,i entify,an inter retthe tastesan ha its of consumersan tooffer ro uctsthata eal to consumer references. If the Com any oes not offer ro uctsthata eal to consumers, its salesan market share will ecrease. It must
Priorﬁg‘r}gu;sh etween short-term fa s, mi -termtren s,an long-term changes in consumer references. If the Com any oes not accurately re ict which shifts in consumer references will e long-term, or if it fails to intro uce newan im rove ro ucts to satisfy those
references, its sales coul  ecline. Ina ition, ecause of its varie customer ase, it must offer an array of ro ucts that satisfy the roa s ectrum of consumer references. If the Com any fails to ex an its ro uct offerings successfully across ro uct categories, or if it oes

Markettlan ista evelo  ro ucts in faster growingan more rofita le categories, eman forits ro uctscoul ecrease, which coul materiallyan a versely affectits ro uct sales, financial con ition, an results of o erations.

Ina ition, achieving growth e en s on its successful evelo ment, intro uction, an marketing of innovative new ro uctsan line extensions. Successful innovation e en sonitsa ility to correctly antici ate customer an consumer acce tance, to o tain, rotectan

Datdmjptain necessary intellectual ro erty rights,an toavoi infringing the intellectual ro erty rights of othersan failureto osocoul com romise its com etitive ositionan a verselyim actits usiness

¢ Quadityenanagement plays an essential role in determining and meeting customer requirements, preventing defects, improving the Company’s products and services, and maintaining the integrity of the data that supports the safety and efficacy of its products.
The Com any’s future success e en son theira ility to maintainan continuously im rove their uality management rogram. Anina ilitytoa ressa uality or safety issue in an effective an timely manner may also cause negative u licity, a loss of customer confi ence in the
FAQs oo B N B . o " N
3 any or the Com any’s current or future o ucts, which may result in the loss of salesan  ifficulty in successfully launching new ro ucts. Ina  ition, a successful claim  rought against the Com any in excess of availa le insurance or not covere yin emnification

= %%reelmentts, or any claim that results in significant a verse u licity against the Com any coul have ana verse effect on their usinessan their re utation.
e Inves

In general, demand for the Company’s products and services is highly c with general i itions. A'su stantial ortion of their revenue s erive from iscretionary's en ing yin ivi uals, which ty ically falls uring times of economic insta ility. Declines
in economic con itions in the .S. or in other countries in which they o erate maya versely im act their consoli ate financial results. Because such eclinesin eman are ifficultto re ict, the Com any or thein ustry may have increase excess ca acity as a result. An

increase in excess ca acity may resultin eclinesin rices for their ro uctsan services.

The Company may face difficulties in obtaining capital. The Com any may have ifficulty raising nee e ca ital in the future as a result of, among other factors, its lack of revenues from sales, as well as the inherent usiness risks associate with the Com anyan  resent an
future market con itions. The usiness currently oes not generate any sales an future sources of revenue may not e sufficient to meet its future ca ital re uirements. The Com any will re uirea itional fun s to execute its usiness strategyan con ucto erations. If

a e uate fun sareunavaila le, the Com any may ere uire to elay, re ucethesco e of or eliminate one or more of its ro uct launches or marketing efforts, any of which may materially harm its ~ usiness, financial con itionan results of o erations

The Company’s technology has a limited history and may perform below expectations. The Com any uses technology that has not een reviously im lemente on customer rojects,an it may ex erience technological ro lems that it is una le to foresee. If the
im lementation of its ro rietary technology is unsuccessful, it coul negatively im act the successful o eration of rojects using its systems an may resultina itional ayments, e uctionsor efaults un er its agreements. Ina ition, there is a lack of long-term relia ility ata

forits ro rietary system. Actual long-term erformance of these rojects may fall short of ex ectations.

The Company’s Board does not keep meeting minutes from its board meetings. Though the Com any is a Delaware Cor orationan Delaware oes not legally re uire its cor orations to recor an  retain meeting minutes, the ractice of kee ing oar minutes is critical to
maintaining goo cor orate governance. Minutes of meetings rovi earecor of cor orate actions, inclu ing irectoran officera ointmentsan oar consents for issuances,an can e hel fulin the event of anau it or lawsuit. These recor -kee ing ractices can also hel
tore ucetherisk of otential lia ility ue to failure to o serve cor orate formalities, an the failure to osocoul negativelyim act certain rocesses, inclu ing utnotlimite tothe ue iligence rocesswith otential investors or ac uirers. There is no guarantee that the

Com any’s oar will eginkee ing oar meeting minutes.

The Company does not have formal advisor agreements in place with listed advisors. A visor agreements ty ically rovi e the ex ectation of the engagement, services, com ensation, an other miscellaneous utiesan rights of the Com anyan a visor. Thesein ivi uals

may not ecom ensate fortheir ex ertisean a vice. There is no guarantee that a visor agreements will e entere into.

The reviewing CPA has included a “going concern” note in the reviewed financials. The accom anying consoli ate financial statements have een re are assumingthe Com any will continue as a going concern, which contem lates the recovera ility of assetsan the
satisfaction of lia ilities in the normal course of - usiness.The Com any has incurre losses from ince tion of $81,966,an has not launche  rinci al o erations which, among other factors, raises su stantial ou ta out the Com any’sa ility to continue as a going concern. The
a ility of the Com any to continue as a going concernis e en entu on management’s lans to raisea itional ca ital from the issuance of e t or the sale of stock, its a ility to commence rofita le sales of its flagshi  ro uct,an itsa ility to generate ositive o erational cash

flow. The accom anying financial statements o notinclu eanya justments that might ere uire shoul the Com any euna le to continue as a going concern.

The Company has engaged in related party transactions. During the erio en e Se tem er 30,2019, the Com anya vance fun stoasharehol er of the Com any. Amounts owe to the Com any as of Se tem er 30, 2019 are non-interest earingan have no maturity

ate. At Se tem er 30, 2019 the outstan ing amount owe to the Com any is $1,451.

The Company has not prepared any audited financial statements. Therefore, investors have no au ite financial information regar ing the Com any’s ca italization or assets or lia ilities on which to make investment —ecisions. If investors feel the information rovi e is

insufficient, then they shoul not invest in the Com any.

The Company is subject to many U.S. federal and state laws and regulations, including those related to privacy, rights of publicity, and law enforcement. These laws an regulations are constantly evolvingan may einter rete ,a lie , create ,oramen e ,inamanner
that coul harm their usiness. The technology an use of the technology in the Com any’s ro uct may not e legislate ,an it is uncertain whether ifferent states will legislate aroun this technology, an , if they o, how they will o so. Violating existing or future regulatory

or ersorconsent ecrees coul su ject the Com anytosu stantial monetary finesan other enalties that coul negatively affect their financial con ition an results of o erations.

General Risks an  Disclosures

Start-u investing is risky. Investing in startu s is very risky, highly s eculative,an shoul not ema e yanyone who cannot affor to lose their entire investment. nlike an investment in a mature usiness where there is a track recor of revenue an income, the success of a
startu or early-stage venture often relies on the evelo ment of anew ro uct or service that may or may not fin a market. Before investing, you shoul carefully consi er the s ecific risksan  isclosures relate to oth this offeringty ean the com any which can e foun in

this com any rofilean the ocuments inthe ataroom elow.

Your shares are not easily transfera le. You shoul not lanon einga letorea ily transferan /or resell your security. Currently there is no market or li ui ity for these shares an the com any oes not have any lans to list these shares on an exchange or other secon ary
market. At some oint the com any may choose to 0o, ut until then you shoul  lan to hol your investment for a significant erio of time eforea “li ui ation event” occurs. A “li ui ation event” is when the com any either lists their shares on an exchange, is ac uire , or

goes ankru t.

The Com anymaynot ay ivi en sfor the foreseea le future. nless otherwise s ecifie in the offering ocumentsan su ject to state law, you are not entitle to receiveany ivi en son your interest in the Com any. Accor ingly, any otential investor who antici ates the

nee forcurrent ivi en s orincome from an investment shoul not urchase any of the securities offere on the Site.

Valuationan ca italization. nlike liste com anies that are value  u licly through market- riven stock rices, the valuation of = rivate com anies, es ecially startu s, is ifficult to assessan you may risk over aying for your investment. Ina ition, there may ea itional

classes of e uity with rights that are suerior to the class of e uity eingsol .

YYou may only receive limite isclosure. While the com any must isclose certain information, since the com any is at an early-stage they may only ea leto rovi elimite informationa outits usiness lanan o erations ecauseit oesnothavefully evelo e o erations
or along history. The com any may also only o ligate to file information erio ically regar ingits usiness, inclu ing financial statements. A u licly liste com any, in contrast, is re uire tofileannualan uarterlyre ortsan rom tly isclose certain events — through

continuing isclosure that you can use to evaluate the status of your investment.

Investment in  ersonnel. An early-stage investment is also an investment in the entre reneur or management of the com any. Beinga le to execute on the usiness lan is often anim ortant factor in whether the usiness is via lean successful. You shoul e aware that a

ortion of your investment may fun the com ensation of the com any’s em loyees, inclu ing its management. You shoul carefully review any isclosure regar ing the com any’s use of rocee s.

Possi ility of frau . In light of the relative ease with which early-stage com anies can raise fun s, it may e the case that certain o ortunities turn out to e money-losing frau ulent schemes. As with other investments, there is no guarantee that investments will e immune from

frau .

Lack of rofessional gui ance. Many successful com anies artially attri ute their early success to the gui ance of rofessional early-stage investors (e.g., angel investors an venture ca ital firms). These investors often negotiate for seats on the com any’s oar of irectors

an layanim ortant role through their resources, contacts an ex erience in assisting early-stage com anies in executing on their usiness lans. An early-stage com any may not have the enefit of such rofessional investors.

e resentatives of Sl Securities, LLC are affiliate with SI A visors, LLC ("SI A visors”) Re resentatives of Sl Securities, LLC are affiliate with SI A visors, LLC ("SI A visors”). SI A visors is an exem tinvestmenta visor that acts as the General Partner of SI Selections Fun
I, L.P. (”Sl Selections Fun ”). Sl Selections Fun is an early stage venture ca ital fun owne ythir - arty investors. From time to time, Sl Selections Fun may invest in offerings ma e availa le on the See Invest latform, inclu ing this offering. Investments ma e y Sl Selections

Fun may ecounte towar sthe total fun sraise necessary to reach the minimum fun ingtargetas isclose inthea lica le offering materials.
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Highlights

Overview

The4@iR the Conversation

TermShestirst to ostacomment or uestiona out .

InvestgrerkSiance ur oses, foun ers con ucting Reg CF offeringsare rohi ite from osting contact information on their Discussion Boar s. Posts inclu ing e-maila resses or hone num erswill e remove imme iately. If youwoul like to connect with an investor irectly lease notify your

e icate cam aign manager on See Invest’s Venture Growth team.
Prior Roun s

Market Lan sca e

Data Room
€ 0 comments
@ FAQs

& see Invest

Fre uently Aske Questions

A outSi e ySi e Offerings

WhatisSi e ySi e?
ASi e ySi eoffering referstoa ealthat s raising ca ital un er two offering ty es. ThisSi e ySi e offering s raising un er Regulation CF

an Rule 506(c) of Regulation D.

What is a Form C?

The Form Cisa ocument the com any must file with the Securities an  Exchange Commission (“SEC”) which inclu es  asic information

a outthe com anyan its offeringan isacon ition to making a Reg CF offering availa le to investors. Itisim ortant to note that the SEC
oes not review the Form C, an  therefore is not recommen ingan fora roving any of the securities eing offere .

Before making any investment ecision, it is highly recommen e that ros ective investors review the Form Cfile with the SEC (inclu e

inthe com any’s rofile) efore making any investment ecision.

Making an Investment in Frame

How oes investing work?

When you com lete your investment on See Invest, your money will e transferre to an escrow account whereanin e en ent escrow
agent will watch over your investment until it is acce te y Frame. Once Frame acce ts your investment, an certain regulatory roce ures
are com lete , your money will e transferre from the escrow account to Frame in exchange for your securities. At that oint, you will ea

rou owner in Frame.

What will I nee to com lete my investment?
To make an investment, you will nee ~the following information rea ily availa le:

1. Personal information such as your currenta  ressan hone num er
2. Em loymentan em loyer information
3. Networthan income information
4. Social Security Num eror ass ort
5. ABA ank routing num eran checking account num er (ty ically foun ona ersonal check or ank statement)
If you are investing un er Rule 506(c) of Regulation D, your status as an Accre ite Investor will also nee to e verifie an youwill e

aske to rovi e ocumentationsu orting your income, net worth, revenue, or net assets or a letter froma ualifie a visor suchasa

Registere Investment A visor, Registere Broker Dealer, Lawyer, or CPA.

After My Investment

What is my ongoing relationshi  with the Issuer?

Youarea artial owner of the com any, you o own securities after all! But more im ortantly, com anies which have raise money via
Regulation CF must file information with the SECan ~ ost it on their we sites on an annual ~ asis. Receiving regular com any u  ates is
im ortantto kee sharehol erse ucate an informe a outthe rogressof the com anyan their investment. This annual re ort
inclu es information similar to a com any’s initial Reg CF filingan  key information that a com any will want to share with its investors to
fostera ynamican healthy relationshi .

In certain circumstances a com any may terminate its ongoing re orting re uirement if:

. Thecom any ecomesafully-re orting registrant with the SEC

™~

The com any has file at least one annual re ort, ut has no more than 300 sharehol ers of recor

w

The com any has file at least three annual re orts,an has no more than $10 million in assets

>

The com any or another arty urchases or re urchases all the securities sol in reliance on Section 4(a) (6)

5. The com any ceasesto o usiness
However, regar less of whether acom any has terminate _its ongoing re orting re wirement er SEC rules, See Invest works with all
com anies onits latform to ensure that investorsare rovi e uarterlyu ates. These uarterlyre ortswillinclu e information such as:
(i) uarterly net sales, (ii) uarterly change in cashan cash on han , (iii) material u ates onthe usiness, (iv) fun raisingu ates (any

Jans for next roun , current roun  status, etc.),an (v) anynota le ressan news.

Other General Questions

What is this agea out?
This is Frame’s fun raising rofile age, where you can fin information that may e hel ful for you to make an investment ~ ecision in their

com any. The information on this age inclu es the com any overview, team ios,an therisksan isclosures relate to this investment

P OFILE'MERY. If the com anyrunsasi e ysi e offeringthatinclu es an offering un er Regulation CF, you may also fin aco y of the

Whatis ule 506(c) un er egulation D?
Rule 506(c) un er Regulation Disaty e of offering with no limits on how much a com any may raise. The com any may generally solicit
their offering, ut the com any must verify each investor’s status as an accre ite investor rior to closingan acce ting fun s. To learn

morea out Rule 506(c) un er Regulation Dan  other offering ty es check out our _logan aca_emy.

Whatis eg CF?

Title Ill of the JOBS Act outlines Reg CF, aty e of offering allowing  rivate com anies to raise u to $1 million from all Americans. Prior
ca ital raising o tions limite  rivate com anies to raising money only from accre ite investors, historically the wealthiest ~2% of
Americans. Like a Kickstarter cam aign, Reg CF allows com anies to raise fun s online from their earlya o tersan the crow . However,
instea of rovi inginvestorsarewar suchasat-shirt oracar ,investors receive securities, ty ically e uity, in the startu s they ack. To
learn more a out Reg CFan  other offering ty es check out our _logan aca_emy.

How much can | invest?
Aninvestor is limite in the amount that he or she may invest in a Reg CF offering uringany 12-month erio :
* Ifeither the annual income or the net worth of the investor is less than $100,000, the investor is limite - to the greater of $2,000 or 5%

of the lesser of his or her annual income or net worth.

¢ Ifthe annualincome an  net worth of the investor are oth greater than $100,000, the investor is limite ~ to 10% of the lesser of his or

her annual income or net worth, to a maximum of $100,000.

Se arately, Frame has set a minimum investment amount of S $1,000.
Accre ite investors investing $20,000 or over o not have investment limits.

How can I sell my securities in the future?
Currently there is no market or li ui ity for these securities. R\ght now Frame oes not lan to list these securities on a national exchange or
another secon ary market. At some oint Frame may choose to 0's0, ut until thenyou shoul  lanto hol  your investment for a

significant erio of time eforea“l ui ation event” occurs. A“li ui ation event” is when Frame either lists their securities on an exchange,

isac uire ,orgoes ankru t.
How olkee track of this investment?

You can return to See Invest at any time to view your ortfolio of investments an o tain a summary statement. If investe un er Regulation

CF you may also receive erio icu ates from the com anya out their usiness,ina ition to monthly account statements.

Frame’s Form C. The Form Ciinclu esim ortant etailsa out Frame’s fun raise that you shoul review efore investing.



How can | (or the com any) cancel my investment un er egulation CF?
Highlight . . .
BY8 erings ma e un er Regulation CF, you may cancel your investment at any time u to 48 hours efore a closing occurs or an earlier

overdieset ythe com any Youill e sentaremin er notificationa  roximately five ays efore the closing or et ate ghing you an
verview
o ortunity to cancel your investment if you ha notalrea y one so. Once a closing occurs, an  if you have not cancele your investment,

The @il receive an email notifying you that your securities have een issue . If you have alrea y fun e your investment, your fun swill e
rom tly refun e toyouu on cancellation. To cancel your investment, you may go to your account’s ortfolio age y clicking your ~rofile

TerritShdetthe to  right corner.
Investor Perks
Prior Roun s

Market Lan sca e

Data Room
€ 0 comments

@ FAQs

& see Invest

P OFILE MEN

What if | change my min a out investing?

If you invest un er any other offering ty e, you may cancel your investment at any time, for any reason until a closing occurs. You will receive
an email when the closing occurs an  your securities have een issue . If you have alrea y fun e your investmentan your fun s are in
escrow, your fun swill e rom tlyrefun e toyouu on cancellation. To cancel your investment, lease go to your account’s ortfolio

age yclicking your rofile icon in the to  right corner,
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This presentation contains offering materials prepared solely by Frame
Media Inc. without the assistance of Sl Securities, and not subject to FINRA
Rule 2210. In addition, this presentation may contain forward-looking
statements and information relating to, among other things, the company,
its business plan and strategy, and its industry. These statements reflect
management’s current views with respect to future events based on
information currently available and are subject to risks and uncertainties
that could cause the company’s actual results to differ materially. Investors
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements as they are meant for illustrative purposes and they do not
represent guarantees of future results, levels of activity, performance, or

achievements, all of which cannot be made. Moreover, no person nor any
other person or entity assumes responsibility for the accuracy and
completeness of forward-looking statements, and is under no duty to
update any such statements to conform them to actual results.
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WE ARE IN THE MIDST OF A NEWS CRISIS.

CONFIDENTIAL




Nearly 7 in 10 Americans
are overwhelmed by
the amount of news.

41% actively avoid it.

CONFIDENTIAL




WE NEED A NEW APPROACH TO JOURNALISM.
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AUDIENCES TODAY CRAVE QUALITY,
NON-FICTION STORYTELLING

[FIRAME

SERIAL
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FRAME BRINGS RIVETING NON-FICTION TO MOBILE

Frame publishes plot-driven human stories that illuminate larger issues in the news, in a format made for mobile phones.
Each piece includes a range of interactive features that bring viewers deeper into the story:

[FIRAME

& frame.media & frame.media

THE SEPARATION

A FAMILY’S FIGHT TO STAY
TOGETHER AFTER ONE OF THE
BIGGEST ICE RAIDS IN U.S.

[FIRAME

TAP TO CONTINUE

READING TIME: 13 - 16 MIN




HOW FRAME STORIES ARE STRUCTURED
Roger pleads guilty in order to avoid

In 1991, Roger Headley is locked up A judge sets cash bail that Roger a potentially lonathier sentence. His
for a shooting. Evidence suggests he — >  can't afford and he is locked up _— P y 'eng ’

[FIRAME

experiences in prison leave him a

did not commit the crime. in Rikers Island. .
different person.

i ’Jbﬁ
3 , ~

Learn a brief
history of
Rikers Island

Explore a map
of Roger’s
arrest

P

Qv
It all comes”

back to bail. -

While at Rikers,
Roger leamed that police had

That's what got me m
that | didn't do the sho

’

the largest jall cemalexes




[FIRAME

FRAME DOES DISTRIBUTION DIFFERENTLY

We deliver our stories through

a concierge-style messaging

service

Subscribers ask our journalists
questions and receive news
updates on topics they want
to follow, all via SMS

Hey, welcome to Frame! We're
2 new kind of magazine made
for your phone.

issues, immigration and the
opioid crisis.

Qs to our jeumalists. If you
don't want to share, say "No"
or "Pass'.

<@ @)

Frame
SYILEN1UIE V., = AlgSAA

The Shadow Prison'; How cash
ail keeps hundreds of
thousands of innccent low-
incarne Americans behind bars.
— "Bl

Frame

Frame Media

Also, here's our contact card,
S0 we're not a total stranger.

Here's ‘The Shadow Prison' —
nooe you enjoy!

[FIRAME

The Shadouw Prison
bit

® O

()

F OO O
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[FIRAME

OUR STORIES ARE SETTING A NEW STANDARD
FOR DIGITAL NEWS ENGAGEMENT

AVERAGE WATCH TIME

AVERAGE SESSION DURATION
(MINUTES)

(MINUTES)

5:07
5:16

17
[

FACEBOOK VIDEO FRAME TOP 50 NEWSPAPER SITES FRAME
(2017) (2018)




FRAME DRIVES REVENUE THROUGH SUBSCRIPTIONS
AND BRANDED STORIES

In a beta test with users, more than 10% of
our total subscribers signed up for paid
subscriptions.

We have secured a branded content deal with

a major U.S nonprofit and plan to add three
more branded clients in 2020.

CONFIDENTIAL




[FIRAME

FRAME IS WORKING.
NOW WE NEED TO SCALE.

JULY

MARCH

JUNE

NOVEMBER DECEMBER MARCH
2018 2019 2019 2019 2019 2020
[ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢
FRAME IS FRAME LAUNCHES JOINED YELLOW, RECEIVED LAUNCHED FRAME REACHED 18% RAISING SEED
FOUNDED PUBLICLY $150K FUNDING MESSAGING MOM SUBSCRIBER ROUND
PLATFORM GROWTH

F

Poynter.

Meet Frame, a
weekly news
magazine that lives
in your calendar and
text messages

]
i W
[S=259)

[FIRAME _r :

Courtesy: Frame

,-eeao@,:

[FIRAME

A NEWSMAGAZINE
FOR THIS CENTURY

READ OUR LATEST




HOW WE’LL USE THE FUNDS

[FIRAME

G&A SERVICES
2%

7%
BRANDED
8%

MARKETING

13% EDITORIAL
57%

PRODUCT
13%
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2 YEAR REVENUE PROJECTION

[FIRAME

B Branded Stories B Paid Subscriptions
$400,000

$300,000

$200,000

$100,000

$O
Q1 2020 Q3 2020 Q1 2021 Q3 2021

!



BEN MOE
FOUNDER | CEO

CO-FOUNDER AND EDITOR-IN-CHIEF OF THE
LITERARY MAGAZINE, TABLE TALK, AND A
VIDEO JOURNALIST AT MIC. BEN GRADUATED
FROM COLUMBIA, CLASS OF 2016.

TOM BARNES
CHIEF PRODUCT OFFICER

EDITOR OF MIC’S MUSIC SECTION AND A MEDIA
PLANNER FOR SPOTIFY’S US MARKET. TRAINED
IN JS DEVELOPMENT BY THE NYC TECH TALENT
PIPELINE. TOM GRADUATED FROM NYU, CLASS
OF 2012.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Frame is disrupting the news industry with
interactive mobile-first documentaries

Backed by Snap Inc.’s Yellow Accelerator

Growing subscribers 18% month over month

Industry-leading user engagement

CONFIDENTIAL




WE’'RE FRAME AND WE'RE INVENTING THE

FUTURE OF NEWS

CONFIDENTIAL




EXHIBIT E
Video Transcript
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Exhibit E: Frame Video Transcript
https://vimeo.com/393033781

[Ben Moe]:
We are in the middle of a news crisis.

More than 40% of U.S. adults are actively avoiding the news and nearly 70% of them are overwhelmed
by it.

Take a step back and think about that for a sec — that’s nearly half of adults in the U.S who are cutting
the news out of their lives. Nearly half of us who aren’t engaged with the biggest social and political
issues of our time.

We need a new approach to journalism, and that’s why I started Frame.

Frame is a new kind of magazine made for your phone. We take the incredibly popular tradition of
narrative non-fiction — think the podcast Serial or Netflix’s Wild Wild Country — and bring it to mobile
video.

Frame publishes 10-15 minute documentaries that explore the biggest issues in the news through plot-
driven, human stories that keep you at the edge of your seat. By creating a new format for news, we’re re-
engaging consumers and dramatically expanding the market for digital journalism.

Our stories have covered everything from how a couple was torn apart by a virulent far-right conspiracy
theory, to how a South African politician risked his own career to expose a massive weapons deal that his
own party was covering up.

We publish our stories in a vertical video format made for mobile, where my generation spends 25% of its
waking life.

Every Frame story is a rich, multimedia experience that makes full use of our phones’ incredible
capabilities. Our stories include interactive features ranging from maps to timelines that allow viewers to
dive deeper into the piece.

The Frame format is setting new standards for engagement. Our stories have an average watch time of
more than 5 minutes. That’s more than 18 times the average watch time for a video on the Facebook
newsfeed.

Beyond our format, we are rethinking distribution in order to create a more personal and enjoyable way of
getting the news. Frame stories are delivered through a concierge-style messaging service, which allows
subscribers to receive updates on stories they want to follow, ask questions directly to our journalists, and
much more.



We have developed both a content management system for creating these mobile-first stories, and a one-
of-a-kind text messaging platform, positioning us at the leading edge of mobile journalism.

Frame launched in March 2019, and since then we’ve received press from top publications, participated in
and received investment from Snap Inc.’s Yellow accelerator, and made it into the semifinals of one of
the top pitch competitions in the world.

We are now growing our subscriber base more than 18% month over month and are ready to scale our
content production so we can bring Frame to millions of people across the U.S and beyond. Our central
revenue streams are paid subscriptions and branded content and we’re already seeing traction in both. In a
test with users, more than 10% of total subscribers became paying members, and we’ve secured a branded
content deal with a major U.S. non-for-profit, and plan to add three more branded clients in 2020.

Backed by Snap’s Yellow accelerator and advisors like Headspace’s former VP of Content, Amy
O’Leary, we are ready to take Frame to the next level.

And we’re not stopping at front-page news. As Frame grows, we’re going to launch verticals focused on
sports, technology, entertainment, and more, all rooted in our unique editorial voice of fascinating, human
stories that help you care about and understand big, important issues.

We’re Frame and we’re making the news vital, exciting and participatory again.

Join us in creating the future of media —

[Logo animation]:
Frame - Reframe your world.



